
 

 

Standards Committee  - 31 August 2016 1 

 

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY 

 

 

Dear Member 

A meeting of the STANDARDS COMMITTEE will be held in THE VIDEO 

CONFERENCE ROOM, PLAS Y FFYNNON, CAMBRIAN WAY, BRECON, 

POWYS LD3 7HP ON WEDNESDAY, 31ST AUGUST, 2016 AT 10.00 AM 

when your attendance is requested. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

John Cook 

 

Chief Executive 

  

 

Fire Evacuation Advice 

In the event of a fire, please exit the building via the main staircase, 

and assemble in the car park at Assembly Point 3 

 

1  CORRESPONDENCE  

 To receive and consider the attached Schedule of Correspondence and any 

recommendations thereon (below). 

 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive any declarations of interest from members relating to items on the 

agenda.  Members’ attention is drawn to the sheet attached to the attendance 

sheet and the need to record their declarations verbally and in writing, 

specifying the nature of the interest. 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

 

Standards Committee  - 31 August 2016 2 

 

  

If Members have declared an interest in an item please ensure that 

you inform the Chair when you are leaving the room, so that this can 

be recorded in the minutes 

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7 May 2015 and authorise the 

Chairman to sign them as a true record. 

 

4  APPLICATIONS FOR DISPENSATION TO SPEAK (Pages 7 - 50) 

 To consider applications from members for dispensation to speak at Planning, 

Access and Rights of Way Committee in respect of the following planning 

applications: 

  

Three applications for Powys Schools: 
  
16/13827/FUL – Talgarth Primary School (Planning Officer:  Ryan Greaney),  

16/13829/FUL – Llangors Church in Wales Primary School (Planning Officer:  

Donna Bowhay)  

16/13830/FUL – Hay on Wye Primary School (Planning Officer: Matthew 

Griffiths).  

  

16/13596/FUL – Land adjacent to Cerrigcochion Road, Brecon (Planning 

Officer:  Matthew Griffiths). 

  

The following members have applied for dispensation and their applications are 

attached: 

  

Cllr Paul Ashton (Schools and Cerrigochion Road) 

Cllr David Meredith (Schools and Cerrigochion Road) 

Cllr Geraint Hopkins (Hay and Talgarth Schools, Cerrigochion Road) 

Cllr Evan Morgan (Schools and Cerrigochion Road) 

Cllr Gwilym Williams (Schools) 

Cllr Phil Pritchard (Schools and Cerrigochion Road) 

  

In addition, the following members have confirmed via email their wish to apply 

under the new dispensation clause: 

  

Where the member asks the Standards Committee to determine that ‘it appears to 
the Committee to be otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation’ 

  

Cllr Paul Ashton 

Cllr David Meredith 



 

 

 

 

Standards Committee  - 31 August 2016 3 

 

Cllr Evan Morgan 

Cllr Geraint Hopkins  

 

5  CHANGES TO THE MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT (Pages 51 - 56) 

 To note the report that went to the National Park Authority on 10 June 2016 

outlining changes to the members’ code of conduct.  The amended code was 

adopted by the Authority and is available on the website:  Members Code of 

Conduct 

 

6  CHANGES TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (STANDARDS 

COMMITTEES, INVESTIGATIONS, DISPENSATIONS AND 

REFERRAL) (WALES )(AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS 2016 (Pages 

57 - 98) 

 To note changes to the Regulations. 

  

To note amendments made to the Authority’s request for dispensation form to 

reflect these changes. 

7  OMBUDSMAN'S ANNUAL REPORT  

 To note the Ombudsman’s Annual Report for 2015-16:  Annual Report 2015-

16 

 

8  OMBUDSMAN'S VIDEO  

 To watch and note a video prepared by the Ombudsman:  Video   

9  STANDARDS CONFERENCE:  2015 AND 2016  

 To receive feedback from Standards Committee member Ian Raynes on the 

Standards Conference 2015 at which he represented the National Park 

Authority. 

  

To note any information about a similar event in 2016. 

 

10  ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 To deal with any other business, which is, in the opinion of the Chairman, of 

such urgency as to warrant consideration. 

  

 

http://modgovpub.breconbeacons.org/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD224&ID=224&RPID=444432&sch=doc&cat=13087&path=13087
http://modgovpub.breconbeacons.org/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD224&ID=224&RPID=444432&sch=doc&cat=13087&path=13087
http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/en/publications/Annual-reports.aspx
http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/en/publications/Annual-reports.aspx
https://youtu.be/Cm4escGiBgk


 

 

 

 

Standards Committee  - 31 August 2016 4 

 

SCHEDULE OF CORRESPONDENCE 

1. To receive apologies for absence 

2. Such other correspondence as, in the opinion of the Chairman, is of such urgency 

as to warrant consideration. 

 

Any enquiries about this agenda should be addressed to Julia Gruffydd on 01874 620400  



 
 
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Standards Committee 1 7 May 2015 

 

 

MINUTES OF BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY STANDARDS 

COMMITTEE HELD AT PLAS Y FFYNNON, CAMBRIAN WAY, BRECON LD3 7HP 

ON THURSDAY, 7TH MAY, 2015 
 

 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Mr A Bracey (Chairman) 

Dr R Morgan 

Mr I Raynes  

Cllr Mrs J Ward 

Cllr Mrs A Webb 

Mrs M Underwood 

 

IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

Mr J Parsons (Monitoring Officer) 

Mrs J Gruffydd (Democratic Services Manager) 

 

7/15 Correspondence  

 

The Chairman advised of two items of correspondence: 

 

 A letter he had received from the Authority confirming his reappointment to the 

Standards Committee for a second and final term of four years; 

 A letter received from the Welsh Government in response to the Authority 

advising them of dispensations granted by the Standards Committee on 9 March 

2015. 

 

Members and officers offered the Chairman their congratulations on his reappointment.  

 

8/15 Declarations of Interest  

 

A member asked the Monitoring Officer whether members had an interest in 

amendments to the regulatory documents, as they were bound by them.  The Monitoring 

Officer advised that this interest could be considered a personal one for the three 

National Park Authority appointed members. 

 

9/15 Minutes  

 

RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the Standards 

Committee held on 9 March 2015 be approved and the 

Chairman authorised to sign them as a true record. 

 

10/15 Public Speaking  

 

There were no requests to speak.  The Monitoring Officer confirmed that this was a 

public meeting except when considering exempt items of business. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Standards Committee 2 7 May 2015 

 

 

11/15 Consultation on Extension of Powers of the Ombudsman  

 

The Monitoring Officer advised that this consultation had come from the Welsh 

Assembly’s Finance Committee and included a number of key issues such as giving the 

Ombudsman a role in advising on complaints handled across public services.  He had sent 

a joint response from the Brecon Beacons and Pembrokeshire Coast National Parks but 

had not received an acknowledgement to date. Members noted the response but had no 

further comments. 

 

12/15 Consultation on redrafting of Principles of Good Administration  

 

The Monitoring Officer drew attention to a consultation document issued by the 

Ombudsman, Principles of Good Administration and Good Records Management.  It 

reviewed how documentation was handled by local authorities including large 

organisations such as health boards.  He would like to see this implemented in the 

National Park Authorities. 

 

A member commented that the case studies used were not relevant to National Park 

Authorities, given their small size, although it would be useful to have failure of the 

planning service as an example.  The Monitoring Officer advised that the Ombudsman was 
dealing with large scale systemic failures and that ‘one size’ was needed for all but he 

would include a suggestion under the response to question 3 that they use the example of 

this Authority putting third party correspondence online in an attempt to be open and 

transparent and then being required to retract this because of data protection issues. 

 

13/15 Local Government Byelaws (Wales) Act 2012  

 

The Monitoring Officer advised that this was the first piece of Welsh legislation.  

Members noted that National Park Authorities could already make byelaws, but that the 

process for doing so had now been simplified. 

 

A member raised the issue of new environment funding being made available to local 

authorities but not National Park Authorities.  In a time of financial constraints this was of 

concern.  The Monitoring Officer offered to draft a letter for the member to send to the 

Welsh Government in her role as Biodiversity Champion for the Authority. The 

Chairman would also do further research into this. 

 

14/15 PSOW Revised Guidance on Members' Code of Conduct  

 

The Monitoring Officer advised that he had taken members through the Ombudsman’s 

revised guidance on the Code of Conduct in their recent training session.  A member 

suggested that Appendices 1 and 2 be copied on A3 and laminated for the Members 

Room, with a smaller version circulated to members to keep as a quick reference. 

 

15/15 Quick Guide to the Code of Conduct  

 

Members considered the Quick Guide to the Code of Conduct which had been in use 

since 2008 and now needed updating to ensure the advice was correct.  It was suggested 

that the flow diagrams in the Ombudsman’s Guide to the Code of Conduct be included. It 

Page 2



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Standards Committee 3 7 May 2015 

 

had originally been based on a guide from Carmarthenshire County Council and it was 

suggested that they be asked whether they had produced a more up to date version. 

 

A member suggested including the Nolan Principles as an additional reminder of the need 

for high standards. 

 

It was agreed that the Democratic Services Manager would circulate a word version of 

the guide for members’ comments and then she would liaise with the Chairman on a 

second draft. 

 

The Chairman welcomed the Standards Committee being proactive on this. 

 

16/15 Review of Regulatory Documents  

 

Members considered proposed amendments to regulatory documents which had also 

been reviewed by the Corporate Management Team and the Governance and Member 

Development Working Group. 

 

In the Standing Orders the committee agreed that clarification was needed to paragraph 

13 in respect of debating motions and the Monitoring Officer would review this before 

the Authority considered the document on 22 May. 
 

Members had no further comment on proposed changes to any of the documents and 

endorsed the recommendations. 

 

RESOLVED:  That subject to clarification on paragraph 13 

of the Standing Orders, proposed amendments to the 

Standing Orders, Planning Protocol, Member Officer 

Protocol and the Members Dispensation Policy be 

endorsed for approval by the Authority on 22 May 2015. 

 

17/15 Standards Conference Cardiff 2015  

 

Members considered the programme for the Standards Conference on 20 October 2015 

and agreed that it was relevant to their role.  After discussion it was agreed that one 

independent member would attend the event and report back to the committee.  It was 

noted that materials from such events were usually made available afterwards.  The 

Democratic Services Manager would make this recommendation to the Authority on 22 

May 2015. 

 

RESOLVED:  That the Authority be recommended to 

send one independent member (to be decided nearer the 

event) to the Standards Conference in Cardiff on 20 

October 2015. 

 

18/15 Consideration of PSOW Annual Report 2013-14  

 

Members received the Ombudsman’s Annual Report and asked the Monitoring Officer to 

back up a request for more varied case studies, given that planning was the third most 

frequent area of complaint (with reference to page 238). 

Page 3



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Standards Committee 4 7 May 2015 

 

 

The Monitoring Officer drew attention to the summary of complaints about National Park 

Authorities (page 278) and advised that while this Authority had more complaints, only 

one had been upheld.  He was a little concerned that this data could be taken out of 

context by the Wales Audit Office when reviewing performance of the Authority and 

would raise this with the Chief Executive. 

 

19/15 Cap on Members Indemnity Insurance  

 

The Monitoring Officer gave a verbal report on this and advised that the Ombudsman had 

requested that local authorities standardise their procedures for dealing with alleged 

breaches of the code of conduct.  The Authority currently had indemnity insurance in 

place to cover any member’s legal costs if alleged to have broken the code, costs which 

the member was required to pay if they were convicted and sanctioned.  If no sanction 

was applied then it was up to the Authority’s discretion, with the Standards Committee 

responsible for applying the indemnity.  Members were asked to recommend to the 

Authority placing a cap on the indemnity insurance and suggested that this be in line with 

Pembrokeshire Coast National Park Authority, which the Monitoring Officer advised was 

£10,000. 

 

RESOLVED:  That the Monitoring Officer write a report 
for the National Park Authority recommending a cap of 

£10,000 for Members Indemnity Insurance. 

 

Subsequent to the meeting the Monitoring Officer ascertained that whilst he had 

recommended a cap of £10,000 to the Pembrokeshire Coast National Park Authority 

their members had opted to set a cap of £20,000.  In the current financial climate he was 

recommending a cap of £10,000 to the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority. 

 

20/15 Other Business  

 

Review of Designated Landscapes 

 

The Monitoring Officer advised that he had met with John Lloyd Jones, the Chairman of 

the Review Panel currently looking at the governance of National Park Authorities. He 

was interested in the views of members and how local government organisation might 

impact on National Park Authorities.  The Monitoring Officer would be submitting his 

own personal views on the appointment of members but it was envisaged that the Panel 

would be meeting with the Authority before the consultation period ended. 

 

Query to Ombudsman 

 

The Monitoring Officer reported that he had sought advice from the Ombudsman on the 

question raised at the last meeting about whether members who had declared a 

prejudicial interest but not sought dispensation to speak, could stay in the meeting if they 

addressed the meeting under the Authority’s public speaking scheme.  He was advised 

that there is currently such a case under consideration but stood by the guidance that 

members had to leave the meeting.  However, they accepted that people might take a 

different view.  He would update members further on this point once the case had been 

determined. 

Page 4



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Standards Committee 5 7 May 2015 

 

 

The Chairman thanked everyone for a useful meeting and commented that this was the 

kind of meeting he had envisaged for the committee. 

 

 

 

 

Signed as a correct record 

Chairman of the Standards Committee 

 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



 

The Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (Wales) (Amendment) Order 

2016. 

 

Name of 

Committee 

 National Park Authority  

Date 

 

10 June 2016 

Report Author John Parsons 

 

Job title 

 

Monitoring Officer 

Contact Details john.parsons@beacons-npa.gov.uk  

 

Purpose of Report To advise members of the proposed changes to the Members 

Code of Conduct brought about by the Local Authorities 

(Model Code of Conduct) (Wales) (Amendment) 

Order 2016. 

Single Integrated 

Assessment 
Not applicable 

List of  Enclosures Amended Model Code of Conduct 

Public Interest Test Not applicable 

Recommendation a) To implement, in accordance with section 51 

of the Local Government Act 2000, changes to 

the Members’ Code of Conduct and to adopt it 

as the Authority’s Code of Conduct for 

Members with effect from 11 June 2016. 

b) To advertise the change to the Code of 

Conduct in line with section 51(6) of the Local 

Government Act 2000. 

 

 

1.1 Background 

 
The Local Government Act 2000, Part III (and regulations made thereunder) sets an ethical 

framework for the conduct of local government members. In its 2012 White Paper, ‘Promoting 

Local Democracy’, the Welsh Government set out a number of proposals for improving the 

Page 51

Agenda Item 5

mailto:john.parsons@beacons-npa.gov.uk


operation of the framework, some of which were addressed in the Local Government 

(Democracy)(Wales) Act 2013 (‘the 2013 Act’). 

 

On 30th November 2015, the Welsh Government issued a consultation on two draft statutory 

instruments (under Part III of the Local Government Act 2000), intended to give effect to the 

policy proposals set out in the 2012 White Paper and consequential upon the legislative changes 

introduced by the 2013 Act and related matters. I responded on behalf of the Authority. 

The proposals were largely technical, in that substantive changes to the law had already been 

made by the 2013 Act, and the proposals were mostly consequential changes to subordinate 

legislation and the Model Code of Conduct to make them compatible with the primary 

legislation 

On 27th January 2016 the Minister for Public Services of the Welsh Government signed the 

Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (Wales) (Amendment) Order 2016 (“ 

the Amendment Order”) that amends the code of conduct in the following ways:- 

Two new statutory instruments have now been made, both of which come into force on 1st 

April 2016. 

1. The Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct)(Wales)(Amendment) Order 2016  

2. Local Government (Standards Committees, Investigations, Dispensations and 

Referral)(Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2016 

 

The key changes introduced are set out below. 

 

1.2 The Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct)(Wales)(Amendment) 

Order 2016 

This Order amends the Model Code of Conduct for Members as follows:  

a) Consequential amendments are made to reflect the transfer of responsibility for the 

maintenance of community councils’ registers of interests from the Monitoring Officer to the 

‘proper officer’ of each community council, which was introduced by the 2013 Act with effect 

from 1st May 2015.This does not affect National Park Authorities. 

b) The requirements for registering interests are clarified, to require that any interest disclosed 

for the first time must be entered in the Members’ register of interests.  

c) The obligation on a Member to report a potential breach of the Code of Conduct  by 

another member  to the Public Service  Ombudsman  for Wales under paragraph 6(1) (c) is 

Page 52



removed. The obligation on a Memberr  will remain to report a potential breach of the 

Members’ Code of Conduct  of another member to the Authority’s Monitoring Officer.  

d) The personal interests provision regarding perceived conflict between a Member’s ward role 

and decisions taken on behalf of the Authority (paragraph 10(2)(b) of the Code) is removed. 

This is to overcome unintended difficulties in relation to Members’ participation in business 

relating to their ward. Members are, however, reminded that when participating in decisions 

relating to their ward, they must be mindful of the general obligation to act objectively and in 

the wider public interest (pursuant to paragraph 8 of the Code). Members will recall that this 

paragraph has caused difficulties in the past and the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales in 

his latest guidance on the Code has commented that: 

 “this paragraph has given rise to great interpretative difficulties. The crux of the problem is that a strict 

interpretation of the paragraph, as worded, could well preclude members from participating in any 

decision affecting their ward whereas the underlying policy intention had been to limit the scope of this 

provision to decisions made by individual councillors in the exercise of executive functions. I do not 

believe that it would be in the public interest, or in the interests of local democracy, to adopt a literal 

interpretation as a matter of course. Therefore as a general rule, in exercising my discretion, the 

decision as to whether to investigate will be based on the assumption that the paragraph is actually 

directed at individual members making decisions in the exercise of executive functions and decisions 

such as those made at planning or licensing committees.”. 

The Authority is required to consider the amendments to the Model Code and adopt the  

revised Model Code of Conduct within six months from the date on which the Amendment 

Order is made. In accordance with section 51 of the Local government Act 2000 as “The 

Amendment Order” was made on 27th January 2016, which means a revised Code must be 

adopted by 26th July 2016.  It is considered expedient for the Authority to consider this at its 

earliest opportunity and for this reason has been put before members on this agenda. 

1.3 The Local Government (Standards Committees, Investigations, 

Dispensations and Referral)(Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2016 

This Order amends 3 statutory instruments (the Standards Committee Regulations 2001, the 

Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees Regulations 2001, and the Grant of 

Dispensations Regulations 2001), as follows: 

a) A number of consequential amendments are made to include reference to joint standards 

committees, introduced by the 2013 Act. 

b) The current maximum term of office for local authority  members of a standards committee 

(4 years) is removed, to reflect the postponement of the 2016 local government elections. 

Page 53



c) Provision is made to enable standards committees to delay publication of agendas and 

information related to consideration of misconduct investigations until the misconduct 

proceedings are concluded. It is suggested, however, that misconduct hearings should generally 

be held in public, unless there are particular reasons why some or all of the proceedings should 

be held in private. 

d) Provision is made to allow referral of misconduct matters to the standards committee of 

another authority, in order to overcome any potential conflict of interest which a standards 

committee may have. 

e) The period of suspension imposed by a standards committee is limited to the remainder of a 

Members’ term of office if this is less than 6 months. This clarification is in line with comparable 

powers of the Adjudication Panel. 

f) A new requirement is introduced for a Member to seek permission from the President or 

nominated member of the Adjudication Panel for Wales in order to appeal against the 

determination of a standards committee. This is intended to remove frivolous or unmeritorious 

appeals.  

g) Provision is made to allow referral of a dispensation application to the standards committee 

of another authority, for example, where there is a potential conflict of interest or to expedite 

an urgent application. 

h) A new general dispensation category is introduced to enable a standards committee to grant 

a dispensation, allowing a Member with an otherwise prejudicial interest to participate in a 

matter, if it considers it appropriate in all the circumstances. A dispensation granted under this  

category which has ongoing effect  its subject to annual review 

 

1.4    Background papers 

 

Welsh Government’s letter dated 2nd March 2016 “Local Government Ethical Framework  ” 

informing Authorities about  the new legislation. 

EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM TO THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (MODEL CODE OF 

CONDUCT) (WALES) (AMENDMENT) ORDER 2016 dated  1st February 2016 

EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM TO THE LOCAL Government (Standards Committees, 

Investigations, Dispensations and Referral)(Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2016 dated 1st 

February 2016 

The Authorities  Consultation Exercise response 

Page 54



Welsh Government  Consulation documnet “Local government  Act 2000-Part III,Conduct of 

Local Government Membrs ,Amendments to Subordinate  Legislation ,30 November 2015   

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:   

a) To implement, in accordance with section 51 of the Local Government Act 

2000, changes to the Members’ Code of Conduct and to adopt it as the 

Authority’s Code of Conduct for Members with effect from 11 June 2016. 

b) To advertise the change to the Code of Conduct in line with section 51(6) of 

the Local Government Act 2000. 

 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  
I N S T R U M E N T S  

2016 No. 85 (W. 39) 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, 

WALES 

The Local Government (Standards 

Committees, Investigations, 

Dispensations and Referral) (Wales) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2016 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations amend the Standards Committees 

(Wales) Regulations 2001 (2001/2283 (W. 172)) (“the 

Standards Committee Regulations”), the Local 

Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring 

Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales) 

Regulations 2001 (2001/2281 (W. 171)) (“the 

Functions Regulations”), and the Standards 

Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) 

Regulations 2001 (2001/2279 (W. 169)) (“the 

Dispensations Regulations”) to implement changes in 

operation of the system governing member conduct 

with the aim of improving local democracy. 

Regulation 2 amends the Standards Committee 

Regulations and makes provision: 

amending existing provisions to facilitate the  

operation of joint standards committees; 

amending existing provisions relating to the length 

of the term of office of members of standards 

committees; and 

clarifying that a relevant authority is exempt from 

making the report or recommendations of an 

investigation available for public inspection until 

misconduct proceedings are concluded. 

Regulation 3 amends the Functions Regulations and 

includes provision: 

enabling a monitoring officer and a standards 

committee of one authority to refer a report or 

recommendations of the monitoring officer to the 

standards committee of another authority for 

determination; and 

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



 2 

detailing the procedure for appealing against the 

decision of a standards committee. 

Regulation 4 amends the Dispensations Regulations 

to provide a procedure for a member’s application for 

a dispensation to be referred to the standards 

committee of another authority for determination. 

The detailed provisions are as follows— 

Regulation 2 

Joint Standards Committees 

Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 (“the 

2000 Act”) makes provision with respect to the 

conduct of local authority members and employees. 

Section 53(1) of the 2000 Act requires every relevant 

authority in Wales, that is, county and county borough 

councils, fire and rescue authorities and National Park 

authorities, but not for this purpose, community 

councils, to establish a standards committee which is 

to have the functions conferred on it by or under Part 

III of the 2000 Act. 

The Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 

2013 (“the 2013 Act”) amended section 53(1) of the 

2000 Act to enable two or more relevant authorities to 

establish a joint standards committee. 

In accordance with section 53(11) of the 2000 Act, 

the Welsh Ministers may by regulations make 

provision as to (among other things) the size, 

composition and proceedings of standards committees 

of relevant authorities in Wales including joint 

committees, and any sub-committees established under 

sections 54A or 56 of the 2000 Act. 

Regulation 2 amends the Standard Committees 

Regulations to facilitate the operation of joint 

standards committees. It makes provision for the 

appointment of community committee and 

independent members to a joint standards committee; 

it limits the number of executive members of a joint 

standards committee; and it makes provision ensuring 

that every meeting of a joint standards committee is 

attended by a monitoring officer of one of the 

constituent relevant authorities. In accordance with the 

amendments in regulation 2 the functions of a 

standards committee within regulations 13 to 17 of the 

Standards Committee Regulations may, in the case of a 

joint standards committee, be discharged by any one of 

the constituent relevant authorities of a joint standards 

committee. 

Provision is also made within regulation 2 amending 

the length of the term of office of members of  

standards committees. 

Page 58

https://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.28677833961457944&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T22380644077&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%252000_22a%25part%25III%25&ersKey=23_T22380644074


 3 

Publication of Misconduct Reports 

Section 51(1) of the 2000 Act imposes a duty upon 

all relevant authorities in Wales to adopt a code 

specifying the standards of conduct expected of their 

members and co-opted members. 

Under section 69 of the 2000 Act the Public Services 

Ombudsman for Wales may investigate any alleged 

breach by members or co-opted members (or former 

members or co-opted members) of the code of conduct 

of a relevant authority in Wales. 

Where the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 

ceases such an investigation before it is completed 

(under section 70(4) of the 2000 Act) the matter 

subject to the investigation may be referred to the 

monitoring officer of the relevant authority. 

Alternatively, where the Public Services 

Ombudsman for Wales determines (under section 

71(2) of the 2000 Act) that it is appropriate for the 

matter to be referred to the monitoring officer of the 

relevant authority, the Ombudsman must produce a 

report on the outcome of the investigation and send it 

to the monitoring officer and the authority’s standards 

committee. 

Regulation 2 makes provision to exempt a standards 

committee or sub-committee from making a 

misconduct report or recommendations available for 

public inspection until misconduct proceedings under 

the Functions Regulations are concluded. The 

regulation also sets out the events that will signify the 

end of the proceedings and which give rise to the 

obligation to publish the materials as soon as 

reasonably practicable. 

Regulation 3 

Section 73 of the 2000 Act enables the Welsh 

Ministers to make regulations specifying how matters 

referred to a monitoring officer and standards 

committee are to be dealt with. The Functions 

Regulations set out the responsibilities of the 

monitoring officer and the standards committee in 

relation to an investigation, the production of a report 

and the outcome of an investigation. 

Section 69 of the 2013 Act amended the regulation-

making power in section 73 of the 2000 Act so as to 

allow the Welsh Ministers to make provision enabling 

a monitoring officer or a standards committee to refer 

a report or recommendations relating to a misconduct 

investigation to the standards committee of another 

relevant authority. Regulation 3 amends the Functions 

Regulations to set out the procedure to be followed 

when making such a referral. 

Page 59



 4 

In relation to the right of a member to appeal against 

the decision of a standards committee, regulation 3 

provides that an appeal may only proceed if the 

president of the Adjudication Panel for Wales, or a 

nominee, has first granted permission for the appeal to 

proceed. The procedure and timescales that apply to an 

application for permission to appeal are also set out in 

within the regulation. 

Regulation 4 

Regulation 4 amends the Dispensations Regulations 

so an application by a member for a dispensation can 

be referred to the standards committee of another 

relevant authority for determination. The regulation 

also makes provision for an additional category of 

general dispensation. 

The Welsh Ministers’ Code of Practice on the 

carrying out of Regulatory Impact Assessments was 

considered in relation to these Regulations. As a result, 

a regulatory impact assessment has been prepared as to 

the likely costs and benefits of complying with these 

Regulations. A copy can be obtained from the Local 

Government Democracy Division, Welsh Government, 

Cathays Park, Cardiff, CF10 3NQ. 

 

 

Page 60



 5 

 

W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  
I N S T R U M E N T S  

2016 No. 85 (W. 39) 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, 

WALES 

The Local Government (Standards 

Committees, Investigations, 

Dispensations and Referral) (Wales) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2016 

Made 27 January 2016 

Laid before the National Assembly 

 for Wales 2 February 2016 

Coming into force 1 April 2016 

The Welsh Ministers, in exercise of the powers 

conferred on the National Assembly for Wales by 

sections 53(11)(1) and (12), 56(5), 73(1), 81(5)(2), 

105(1) and (2) and 106 of the Local Government Act 

2000(3) and now vested in them(4), make the 

following Regulations: 

Title, commencement and application 

1.—(1) The title of these Regulations is the Local 

Government (Standards Committees, Investigations, 

Dispensations and Referral) (Wales) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2016 and they come into force on 1 April 

2016. 

                                                                               
(1) Section  68(1) and (2)(c)(i) of the Local Government (Democracy) 

(Wales) Act 2013 (anaw 4) substituted the words “Welsh 
Ministers” for “National Assembly for Wales” in section 53(11) of 
the Local Government Act 2000 (c. 22) (“the 2000 Act”). 

(2) Section 26 and paragraphs 7 and 48(1) and (2) of Part 1 of 
Schedule 4 to the Localism Act 2011 (c. 20) (“the 2011 Act”) 
substituted the words “Welsh Ministers” for “Secretary of State” in 
section 81(5) of the 2000 Act. Subsection (8) of section 81 of the 
2000 Act was repealed by section 26 and paragraphs 7 and 48(1) 
and (4) of Part 1 of Schedule 4 to, and section 237 and Part 5 of 
Schedule 25 to, the 2011 Act. 

(3) 2000 c. 22. 
(4) The functions of the National Assembly for Wales under sections  

53, 56, 73, 81, 105 and 106 were transferred to the Welsh 
Ministers under section 162 and paragraph 30 of Schedule 11 to 
the Government of Wales Act 2006 (c. 32). 

Page 61



 6 

(2) These Regulations apply in relation to Wales. 

Amendments to the Standards Committees (Wales) 

Regulations 2001 

2.—(1) The Standards Committees (Wales) 

Regulations 2001(1) are amended as follows. 

(2) In regulation 2 (interpretation)— 

(a) in the definition of “community committee 

member” (“aelod pwyllgor cymunedol”), after 

“authority” insert “or authorities”; 

(b) for the definition of “fire authority” 

(“awdurdod tân”) substitute— 

““fire and rescue authority” (“awdurdod tân 

ac achub”) means a fire and rescue 

authority constituted by a scheme under 

section 2 of the Fire and Rescue Services 

Act 2004(2) or a scheme to which section 

4 of that Act applies;”; 

(c) in the definition of “independent member” 

(“aelod annibynnol”), for the words “the 

relevant authority” to “community council” 

substitute “a relevant authority or a 

community council”; 

(d) in the appropriate place insert— 

““joint committee” (“cyd-bwyllgor”) means 

a committee established by two or more 

relevant authorities under section 53(1)(3) 

of the 2000 Act;”;   

(e) for the definition of “lay panel member” 

(“aelod panel lleyg”), substitute— 

““lay panel member” (“aelod panel lleyg”) 

means a member of a panel established 

under regulation 15 who— 

(a) is not and has not been a 

member, co-opted member or 

officer of a relevant authority or 

a community council, or 

(b) is not the spouse or civil partner 

of a member or officer of a 

relevant authority or a 

community council;”; 

(f) for the definition of “mayor and cabinet 

executive” (“gweithrediaeth maer a 

chabinet”), substitute—  

““mayor and cabinet executive” 

(“gweithrediaeth maer a chabinet”) means 

the form of executive arrangements 

                                                                               
(1) S.I. 2001/2283 (W. 172). 
(2) 2004 (c. 21). 
(3) Section 53(1) was amended by section 68(1) and (2)(a) of the 

Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 (anaw 4). 

Page 62



 7 

specified in section 11(2) of the 2000 Act;”

; 

(g) in the definition of “member” (“aelod”), in 

paragraph (b), for “fire authority” substitute 

“fire and rescue authority”; 

(h) in the definition of “relevant authority” 

(“awdurdod perthnasol”), in paragraph (d) for 

“fire authority” substitute “fire and rescue 

authority”; 

(i) in the definition of “section 54A sub-

committee” (“is-bwyllgor adran 54A”), omit 

the words “of a relevant authority”; 

(j) for the definition of “standards committee” 

(“pwyllgor safonau”) substitute— 

““standards committee” (“pwyllgor 

safonau”), unless the context otherwise 

requires, means— 

(a) a standards committee of a relevant 

authority; 

(b) a joint committee; 

(c) a section 54A sub-committee; or 

(d) a community sub-committee;”. 

(3) In regulation 4, in paragraph (a), after “authority” 

insert “or authorities”. 

(4) In regulation 8, in paragraph (3), for “fire 

authority” substitute “fire and rescue authority”. 

(5) For regulation 9, substitute— 

“9.—(1) Subject to paragraph (2), where a 

local authority operates executive arrangements 

a standards committee may not include more 

that one executive member from that authority. 

(2) Where two or more local authorities have 

established a joint committee, that committee 

may not include more than one executive 

member from each constituent local authority.” 

(6) In regulation 10— 

(a) in paragraph (1)(a), after the word “area” 

insert “or in the case of a joint committee, in 

the area of the constituent local authorities”; 

(b) in paragraph (2), after “local authority” the 

second time it occurs insert “or, in the case of 

a joint committee, by whichever of the 

constituent local authorities of that committee 

as is agreed between them”; 

(c) in paragraph (3)(a), after “area” insert “or in 

the case of a joint committee, the combined 

areas of the constituent authorities”. 

(7) Before regulation 13, immediately after the 

heading “Appointment of independent members to 

standards committees”, insert— 

Page 63



 8 

“12A.—(1) In regulations 13 to 17 a 

requirement or act of a relevant authority in 

respect of that authority’s area includes in the 

case of a joint committee, the combined areas of 

that committee’s constituent authorities. 

(2) In regulations 13 to 17 a requirement of a 

relevant authority may, in the case of a joint 

committee, be discharged by any one of the 

constituent local authorities.” 

(8) In regulation 18— 

(a) for paragraph (1) substitute— 

“(1) The term of office of a member of a 

local authority standards committee who is 

a member of that authority shall be no 

longer than the period until the next 

ordinary local government elections for that 

authority following the member’s 

appointment to the committee.”; 

(b) in paragraph (2), at the end insert “or, in the 

case of a joint committee, of a constituent 

local authority of that committee”. 

(9) In regulation 18A— 

(a) for paragraph (1) substitute— 

“(1) The term of office of a member of a 

local authority standards committee who is 

a community committee member shall be 

no longer than the period until the next 

ordinary elections for the community 

council of which he or she is a member 

following his or her appointment to the 

standards committee.”; 

(b) in paragraph (2), at the end insert “or, in the 

case of a joint committee, of a constituent 

local authority of that committee”. 

(10) In regulation 19— 

(a) for paragraph (1) substitute— 

“(1) Where a relevant authority is a 

National Park authority or a fire and rescue 

authority, the term of office of a member of 

that authority’s standards committee who is 

a member of such an authority shall be no 

longer than the period until that member 

ceases to be a member of that authority.”; 

(b) in paragraph (2), at the end insert “or, in the 

case of a joint committee, of a constituent 

relevant authority of that committee”. 

(11) In regulation 21— 

(a) for paragraph (1) substitute— 

“(1) Subject to paragraph (2) of regulation 

18 and paragraph (2) of regulation 19, a 

member of the standards committee of a 

relevant authority who is a member of that 

Page 64



 9 

authority, or in the case of a joint committee 

is a member of a constituent authority of 

that committee, may be reappointed for one 

further consecutive term.”; 

(b) in paragraph (2), after “authority” the second 

time it occurs insert “or, in the case of a joint 

committee, by such of the constituent relevant 

authorities as may be agreed between them,”. 

(12) In regulation 21A— 

(a) in paragraph (1), after “local authority” the 

second time it occurs insert “or, in the case of 

a joint committee, by such of the constituent 

local authorities as may be agreed between 

them,”; 

(b) in paragraph (2)(a), after “area” insert “or, in 

the case of a joint committee, the combined 

areas of the constituent authorities”.  

(13) In regulation 22, at the end of paragraph (8) 

insert “or, in the case of a joint committee, to the 

proper officer of such of the constituent relevant 

authorities as is agreed between them for that 

purpose”. 

(14) In regulation 23, in paragraph (1), after 

“relevant authority” insert “or authorities”. 

(15) In regulation 25, for paragraph (3) substitute— 

“(3) The monitoring officer or a 

representative of the monitoring officer of a 

relevant authority, or in the case of a joint 

committee, the monitoring officer or a 

representative of the monitoring officer of a 

constituent authority of that joint committee, 

shall attend every meeting of the standards 

committee.” 

(16) In regulation 26, after paragraph (2) insert— 

“(2A)(a) Subject to the following sub-

paragraphs, sections 100B to 100D shall be read 

as not requiring a standards committee to 

publish or otherwise make available to the 

public agendas for, records of, or information 

connected to a matter referred to its standards 

committee pursuant to section 70(4) or (5) or 

section 71(2) or (4) of the 2000 Act;  

(b) the exemption to the access to agenda 

and reports requirements provided for 

within sub-paragraph (a) will cease to 

apply upon the conclusion of the 

proceedings of the standards 

committee;  

(c) the conclusion of the proceedings in 

sub-paragraph (b) means the latest of 

the following events specified in the 

Local Government Investigations 

(Functions of Monitoring Officers and 

Page 65



 10 

Standards Committees) (Wales) 

Regulations 2001(1): 

 (i) the expiry of time allowed to 

lodge a notice seeking permission 

to appeal under regulation 10(2); 

 (ii) receipt of notification of the 

decision of the president of the 

Adjudication Panel for Wales or 

the nominated panel member in 

accordance with regulation 10(9); 

 (iii) receipt of notification of the 

conclusion of any appeal in 

accordance with regulation 12 

(a)(i) or (b); or 

 (iv) a further determination by the 

standards committee made after 

receiving a recommendation from 

an appeals tribunal under 

regulation 12(a)(ii); 

(d) the standards committee must publish 

the materials to which sub-paragraph 

(a) refers as soon as reasonably 

practicable following the conclusion of 

the proceedings.” 

(17) In regulation 28, in paragraph (1), after 

“relevant authority concerned” insert “or, in the case of 

a joint committee, the proper officer of a constituent 

authority of that joint committee,”. 

(18) In regulation 29 after “relevant authority” in 

both places it occurs insert “or, in the case of a joint 

committee, one of the constituent relevant 

authorities,”. 

(19) After regulation 30 insert— 

“Supplementary transitional arrangements 

31. A person who is a member of a standards 

committee on the date on which the Local 

Government (Standards Committees, 

Investigations, Dispensations and Referral) 

(Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2016 come 

into force may, if the relevant authority so 

determines, continue in office until the date of 

the next ordinary local government elections, 

unless that person ceases to be a member of the 

relevant authority concerned before the date of 

those elections.” 

                                                                               
(1) S.I. 2001/2281 (W. 171), as amended by these Regulations. 

Page 66



 11 

 

Amendments to the Local Government 

Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers 

and Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations 

2001 

3.—(1) The Local Government Investigations 

(Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards 

Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001 are amended 

as follows. 

(2) In regulation 2 (interpretation) in the appropriate 

place insert— 

““community sub-committee” (“is-bwyllgor 

cymunedol”) means a sub-committee appointed by 

a Standards Committee of a local authority under 

section 56 of the 2000 Act;”; 

“joint committee” (“cyd-bwyllgor”) means a 

committee established by two or more relevant 

authorities under section 53(1) of the 2000 Act;”; 

““section 54A sub-committee” (“is-bwyllgor 

adran 54A”) means a sub-committee appointed by 

a Standards Committee under section 54A(1) of 

the 2000 Act;”; 

““Standards Committee” (“Pwyllgor Safonau”) 

means— 

(a) a Standards Committee of a relevant 

authority; 

(b) a joint committee; 

(c) a section 54A sub-committee; or 

(d) a community sub-committee;”. 

(3) In regulation 3 (functions of monitoring officers) 

after paragraph (2) insert— 

“(3) Subject to paragraph (4), the monitoring 

officer of a relevant authority may make 

arrangements to make a report, or 

recommendations, in accordance with 

paragraphs (1)(b) and (2) to the Standards 

Committee of another relevant authority. 

(4) The monitoring officer of a relevant 

authority (“A”) may not make arrangements 

under paragraph (3) to make a report, or 

recommendations, to the Standards Committee 

of another relevant authority (“B”) unless the 

chairperson of the Standards Committee of A 

has consented in writing.” 

(4) In regulation 5 (restrictions on disclosure of 

information), in paragraph (1)— 

(a) at the end of sub-paragraph (e) insert “or”; 

(b) omit sub-paragraph (f). 

(5) In regulation 6 (reports), at the end of paragraph 

(a) insert “or, in accordance with arrangements made 

Page 67



 12 

under regulation 3(3), to the Standards Committee of 

another relevant authority”. 

(6) For regulation 7  (functions of the standards 

committee) substitute— 

“7.—(1) After receiving a report and any 

recommendations from a monitoring officer, or 

a report from the Public Services Ombudsman 

for Wales together with any recommendations 

of a monitoring officer, a Standards Committee 

must determine either: 

(a) that there is no evidence of any failure 

to comply with the code of conduct of 

the relevant authority concerned and 

give notice to that effect to: 

 (i) the person who is the subject of 

the investigation; 

 (ii) the person or persons making the 

allegation which gave rise to the 

investigation; and 

 (iii) the Public Services Ombudsman 

for Wales; or 

(b) that a person who is the subject of the 

investigation must be invited to make 

representations, either orally or in 

writing, in respect of the findings of the 

investigation and of any allegation of a 

failure to comply with the relevant 

authority’s code of conduct. 

 (2) A Standards Committee may make 

arrangements for the functions specified in 

paragraph (1) to be exercised by the Standards 

Committee of another relevant authority.” 

(7) After regulation 7 (functions of the standards 

committee) insert— 

“Reports or Recommendations referred to 

another Standards Committee 

7A.—(1) Where a monitoring officer under 

regulation 6 (reports) or a Standards Committee 

under regulation 7 (functions of the Standards 

Committee) makes arrangements under 

regulation 3(3) or  7(2), the monitoring officer 

or Standards Committee making such 

arrangements must give the notice described in 

paragraph (2) to: 

(a) the person or persons who is or are the 

subject of investigation; 

(b) the person or persons making the 

allegation of misconduct giving rise to 

the investigation; and 

(c) the Public Services Ombudsman for 

Wales. 

Page 68



 13 

(2) The notice to which paragraph (1) refers 

must include the following: 

(a) a statement that the matter has been 

referred to another relevant authority’s 

Standards Committee for 

determination; 

(b) the name of the other relevant 

authority; and 

(c) the reason why the matter has been 

referred to the Standards Committee of 

the other relevant authority.” 

(8) In regulation 8 (procedure and powers of 

standards committee)— 

(a) in paragraph (5), for “the relevant authority” 

substitute “a relevant authority”; 

(b) in paragraph (6), in sub-paragraph (b) omit 

“or (b)”. 

(9) In regulation 9 (determinations of the standards 

committee)— 

(a) in paragraph (1)— 

(i) in sub-paragraph (c), for “the relevant 

authority” substitute “a relevant 

authority”; 

(ii) in sub-paragraph (d), after “six months” 

insert “or, if shorter, for the remainder of 

that person’s term of office”; 

(b) for paragraph (3) substitute— 

“(3) After making a determination in 

accordance with paragraph (1) or (2) the 

Standards Committee must notify: 

(a) the person or persons who is or are the 

subject of the investigation; 

(b) the person or persons making the 

allegation of misconduct giving rise to 

the investigation; 

(c) the Public Services Ombudsman for 

Wales; and 

(d) where the Standards Committee has 

made its determination pursuant to 

arrangements with the monitoring 

officer or Standards Committee of 

another relevant authority, the 

Standards Committee of that authority.

”; 

(c) after paragraph (4) insert— 

“(5) Notice given under paragraphs (3) and 

(4) must include reasons for the determination.” 

(10) In regulation 10 (right of appeal)— 

(a) in paragraph (1), after “that person may” 

insert “seek permission to”; 

Page 69



 14 

(b) in paragraph (2)— 

(i) for “The appeal” substitute “The 

application for permission to appeal”; 

(ii) for the words from “to this address” to 

“CF10 3NQ” substitute “to the president 

of the Adjudication Panel for Wales”; 

(c) in paragraph (3)— 

(i) for “notice of” where it first appears 

substitute “notice seeking permission to”; 

(ii) for sub-paragraph (b)  substitute— 

“(b) whether or not permission to appeal is 

granted, the person seeking permission 

to appeal consents to the appeal being 

conducted by way of written 

representations.”; 

(d) after paragraph (3) insert— 

“(4) An application for permission to appeal 

is to be decided by the president of the 

Adjudication Panel for Wales or a member of 

the panel nominated by the president of the 

Adjudication Panel to exercise this function. 

(5) Unless the president or the person 

nominated considers that special circumstances 

render a hearing desirable, the decision on 

whether to grant permission to appeal is to be 

made in the absence of the parties. 

(6) The president of the Adjudication Panel 

for Wales or the nominated panel member may, 

in writing, request further information from the 

parties. 

(7) The further information requested in 

paragraph (6) must be submitted to the president 

of the Adjudication Panel for Wales or the 

nominated panel member within a period of 14 

days from the date on which the request for 

further information is received. 

(8) In reaching a decision on whether to grant 

permission to appeal, the president of the 

Adjudication Panel for Wales or the nominated 

panel member must have regard to whether the 

appeal or part of it has a reasonable prospect of 

success. 

(9) The president of the Adjudication Panel 

for Wales or the nominated panel member must 

decide whether to grant permission to appeal 

and give notice of the decision no more than 21 

days after receipt of the application for 

permission to appeal, or where further 

information has been requested under paragraph 

(6), no more than 14 days after the end of the 

period specified in paragraph (7). 

Page 70



 15 

(10) The president of the Adjudication Panel 

for Wales or the nominated panel member must 

notify the decision in paragraph (8) to: 

(a) the person seeking permission to 

appeal; 

(b) the Public Services Ombudsman for 

Wales; and 

(c) the Standards Committee which made 

the determination that is the subject of 

the application for permission to 

appeal.  

(11) If permission to appeal is refused the 

notice given under paragraph (9) must also 

include the reasons for that decision. 

(12) If permission to appeal is granted the 

president of the Adjudication Panel for Wales or 

the nominated panel member must refer the 

matter to an appeals tribunal.” 

(11) In regulation 11 (appeals), in paragraph (2)— 

(a) for “the deputy president” substitute “a 

nominated panel member”; 

(b) for “or deputy president” substitute “or the 

nominated panel member”. 

Amendments to the Standards Committees (Grant 

of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 

4.—(1) The Standards Committees (Grant of 

Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001(1) are 

amended as follows. 

(2) In regulation 1, in paragraph (3) in the 

appropriate place insert— 

““community sub-committee” (“is-bwyllgor 

cymunedol”) means a sub-committee appointed by 

a standards committee of a local authority under 

section 56 of the Act;”; 

““joint committee” (“cyd-bwyllgor”) means a 

committee established by two or more relevant 

authorities under section 53(1) of the Act;”; 

““section 54A sub-committee” (“is-bwyllgor 

adran 54A”) means a sub-committee appointed by 

a standards committee under section 54A(1) of the 

Act”; 

““standards committee” (“pwyllgor safonau”) 

means— 

(a) a standards committee of a relevant authority; 

(b) a joint committee; 

(c) a section 54A sub-committee; or 

(d) a community sub-committee;”. 

                                                                               
(1) S.I. 2001/2279 (W. 169). 

Page 71



 16 

(3) In regulation 2— 

(a) at the end of paragraph (h) omit “or”; 

(b) in paragraph (i), for the words that follow 

“removed”  substitute “; or”; 

(c) after paragraph (i) insert— 

 “(j) “it appears to the committee to be 

otherwise appropriate to grant a 

dispensation.” 

(4) After regulation 2 insert— 

“Dispensations granted in accordance with 

regulation 2(j) 

3.—(1) A dispensation granted by the 

standards committee of a relevant authority 

under section 81(4) of the Act on the grounds 

set out in regulation 2(j) and which remains in 

effect, must be reviewed by the standards 

committee once in every 12 month period from 

the date on which the dispensation is first 

granted. 

(2) When conducting a review under 

paragraph (1) the standards committee must 

determine whether the dispensation should 

continue to have effect. 

Procedure and powers of standards 

committees 

4.—(1) A standards committee of a relevant 

authority may refer an application for a 

dispensation made by a member of the authority 

to the standards committee of another relevant 

authority for consideration and determination. 

(2) The monitoring officer of a relevant 

authority to which an application for a 

dispensation is made may, with the prior written 

consent of the chairperson of the standards 

committee of that authority, make arrangements 

for the application to be considered and 

determined by the standards committee of 

another relevant authority. 

(3) Where reasonable efforts to contact the 

chairperson of the standards committee of the 

relevant authority have been unsuccessful, the 

vice-chairperson of the standards committee 

may give consent under paragraph (2). 

(4) Where a monitoring officer or standards 

committee makes arrangements for a 

dispensation application to be considered and 

determined by the standards committee of 

another relevant authority, the monitoring 

officer or standards committee that makes those 

Page 72



 17 

arrangements must provide notice to the person 

making the application accordingly. 

(5) The notice to which paragraph (4) refers 

must include the following— 

(a) a statement that the matter has been 

referred to another relevant authority’s 

standards committee for consideration 

and determination; 

(b) the name of the other relevant 

authority; and 

(c) the reason why the application has 

been referred to the standards 

committee of the other relevant 

authority. 

(6) When the standards committee has 

determined the application it must give written 

notice of its decision to the— 

(a) member applying for the dispensation; 

and 

(b) standards committee of the referring 

relevant authority.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Leighton Andrews 

Minister for Public Services, one of the Welsh 

Ministers 

27 January 2016 

 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Training Talk 

 

June/July 2016 

 

by John Parsons, 

Monitoring Officer 

Pembrokeshire Coast National ParkAuthority 

and 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

 

 

Page 75



2 
 

 

Training  Talk  2016 

This year there will be a number of individual themes to the Member training to 

take into account both recent changes in the law in relation to the Code of 

Conduct that each member of the authority has signed on taking up their 

appointment to the Authority  

They are:- 

 Awareness of responsibilities to others 

 Changes to the Members. Code of Conduct 

 Changes to the Dispensation procedure 

 a revisit to parts of the Authority’s Standing Orders, with particular 

reference to the procedure on amendments, seconding and proposing 

resolutions 

 an explanation of the procedure of how the Public Service Ombudsman 

for Wales deals with complaints made to him about alleged breaches of 

the Members Code of Conduct  and his investigations. 

1 Awareness-cultural,racial,religious, gender ,sexual,racial etc 

Our Code ,which was adopted on ...................... says  

“4.  You must — 

(a)  carry out your duties and responsibilities with due regard to the principle 

that there should be equality of opportunity for all people, regardless of their 

gender, race, disability, sexual orientation, age or religion;  

(b)  show respect and consideration for others;  

(c)  not use bullying behaviour or harass any person; and  

Page 76



3 
 

(d) not do anything which compromises, or which is likely to compromise, the 

impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, your authority.” 

 

The PSOW says in his Guidance on the Members’ Code of Conduct  on the 

subject of  

“Equality” 

1You must carry out your duties with due regard to the principle that there 

should be equality of opportunity for all people regardless of their gender, 

race, disability, sexual orientation, age or religion. 

You should at all times seek to avoid discrimination. There are four main forms 

of discrimination: 

 Direct discrimination: treating people differently because of their gender, 

race, disability,sexual orientation, age •or religion 

•  Indirect discrimination: treatment which does not appear to differentiate 

between people because of their gender, race, disability, sexual orientation, 

age or religion, but which disproportionately disadvantages them 

•  Harassment: engaging in unwanted conduct on the grounds of gender, 

race, disability, sexual orientation, age or religion, which violates another 

person’s dignity or creates a hostile,  degrading, humiliating or offensive 

environment 

•  Victimisation: treating a person less favourably because they have 

complained of discrimination, brought proceedings for discrimination, or 

                                                           
1 See Paragraph 4(a)1Members Code  of Conduct 

 

Page 77



4 
 

been involved in complaining about or bringing proceedings for 

discrimination. 

The Equality Act 2010 (as amended) reinforces the importance of this part of 

the Code. It imposes positive duties to eliminate unlawful discrimination and 

harassment and to promote equality.Under equality laws, your authority may be 

liable for any discriminatory acts which you commit.This will apply if you do 

something in your official capacity in a discriminatory manner. 

You must be careful not to act in a way which may amount to any of the 

prohibited forms of discrimination, or to do anything which hinders your 

Authority’s fulfilment of its positive duties under equality laws. Such conduct 

may cause your authority to break the law, and you may find yourself subject to 

a complaint that you have breached this paragraph of the Code. 

You must also be mindful that at all times including when acting in your private 

capacity, you must not act in a way that would bring your National Park 

Authority  into disrepute. It is likely that engaging in behaviour which could be 

considered to be in breach of the Equality Act in your private capacity would 

fall into this category. 

Example 

A member of a county council was a member of the Council’s Recruitment 

Panel to appoint a new Chief Executive. Five applicants were shortlisted. After 

one candidate had finished his presentation and left the room Councillor A said 

“good candidate, shame he’s black”. 

 The Adjudication Panel for Wales found that paragraph 4(a) of the Code had 

been breached and that Councillor A had brought the office of member and his 

authority into disrepute (in breach of paragraph 6(1)(a) of the Code). 

Treating others with respect and consideration 

Page 78



5 
 

See Paragraph 4(b)2 

Freedom of expression is a right which applies to all information and ideas, not 

just those that are found favourable.However it is a right that may be restricted 

in certain circumstances, for example,for the protection of the rights and 

interests of others. A member’s freedom of expression attracts enhanced 

protection when the comments are political in nature. Therefore, the criticism of 

opposition ideas and opinion is considered to be part of democratic debate, and 

it is unlikely that such comments would ever be considered to be a breach of the 

Code. 

“Political” comments are not confined to those made within the council 

chamber and, for example,include comments members may generally make on 

their authority’s policies or about theirpolitical opponents. Therefore, unless the 

comments are highly offensive or outrageous, it isbunlikely that the PSOW will 

investigate and will take the view that the member needs a “thicker skin”. 

Hesays he  may also decline to investigate a complaint where the member has 

raised “political” issues with officers. This would not however include threats to 

an officer’s position or wellbeing.  

Recent case law has confirmed that council officers should be protected from 

unwarranted comments that may have an adverse effect on good administration 

and states that it is in the public interest that officers are not subject to 

unwarranted comments that disenable them from carrying out their duties or 

undermine public confidence in the administration. That said, the officers who 

are in  more senior positions, for example Chief Executives or Heads of 

Services, will also be expected to have a greater degree of robustness. 

He goes on to say that  “I expect members to afford colleagues, opponents and 

officers the same courtesy and consideration they show to others in their 

                                                           
2 Members  Code  of  Conduct 

Page 79



6 
 

everyday lives. Whilst I recognise that political debate can, at times, become 

heated, the right to freedom of expression should not be used as an excuse for 

poor conduct generally. Such poor conduct can only discredit the role of 

member in the eyes of the public.” 

When considering such complaints he will take into account the specific 

circumstances of the case, whether, in his view, the member was entitled to 

question the officer concerned, whether there was an attempt to intimidate or 

undermine the officer and the content and context of what has been said. 

Political comments can attract Article 10 rights3 

Example 

An appeal tribunal of the Adjudication Panel for Wales considered an appeal by 

Councillor X against the decision of the Council’s Standards Committee. The 

Standards Committee found that Councillor X had failed to show respect and 

consideration to another member by prohibiting him  from e-mailing the clerk 

and accessing the Council’s website. Councillor X also made comments in an e-

mail to the other members regarding his colleague’s shower habits. In doing this 

the Standards Committee found that Councillor X had brought the Council into 

disrepute. 

The Adjudication Panel found that Councillor X’s comments were political in 

nature and attracted the enhanced protection of Article 10 of the European 

Convention on Human Rights. 

The Standards Committee’s decision was overturned and the sanction rescinded. 

The decision of the Adjudication Panel can be found on the Panel’s website 

http://apw.wales.gov.uk under (Ref: APW/001/2014-015/AT). 

Example 

                                                           
3 EuropeanConvention on Human Rights 

Page 80

http://apw.wales.gov.uk/


7 
 

The Adjudication Panel upheld a finding of a Standards Committee of a failure 

to show respect and consideration for others by posting online comments about 

other members and the way in which the Council was run. The member sought 

judicial review of this decision.  

The Court found that whilst the comments which were posted were sarcastic 

and mocking and the tone ridiculed his fellow members, because the majority of 

the comments related to the way in which the Council was run, how its 

decisions were recorded and the competence of the members, the comments 

were “Political Expression”. The ruling said no account had been taken of the 

need for politicians to have “thicker skins”. 

 In view of the member’s freedom of expression and the fact that the majority of 

comments were directed at fellow councillors, the finding of a breach in this 

case was a disproportionate interference with the member’s rights under Article 

10 of the EuropeanConvention on Human Rights. The Standards Committee’s 

decision to censure the member was therefore set aside. 

 

 Yet another Example 

A member of a town council wrote to a Deputy Minister of the Welsh Assembly 

Government about an employee (“Mr Smith”) of a county council, a letter 

which was also copied to the Council. In the letter the member questioned Mr 

Smith’s competence and motivation and he made a number of comments of a 

disparaging and personal nature about Mr Smith and his associates. He raised 

the issue of homosexuality and referred to it as a “notorious disability” and that 

“homosexuality is only a demon which can be driven out”. The member was 

referred to the Adjudication Panel for Wales. 

Page 81



8 
 

The Panel found that the member had breached paragraph 4(b) in that he had 

failed to show respect and consideration for others. It also found that by his use 

of words he had brought the office of member into disrepute in breach of 

paragraph 6(1)(a) of the Code. 

The member was disqualified for 12 months from being or becoming a member 

of a local authority. 

Bullying and harassment 

See Paragraph 4(c)4 

You must not use any bullying behaviour or harass any person including other 

members, council officers or members of the public. 

Harassment is repeated behaviour which upsets or annoys people. Bullying can 

be characterised as offensive, intimidating, malicious, insulting or humiliating 

behaviour. Such behaviour may happen once or be part of a pattern of behaviour 

directed at a weaker person or person over whom you have some actual or 

perceived influence. Bullying behaviour attempts to undermine an individual or 

a group of individuals, is detrimental to their confidence and capability, and 

may adversely affect their health. This can be contrasted with the legitimate 

challenges which a member can make inquestioning policy or scrutinising 

performance. 

 An example of this would be debates in the chamber about policy, or asking 

officers to explain the rationale for the professional opinions they have put 

forward. You are entitled to challenge fellow councillors and officers as to why 

they hold their views. 

When considering allegations of bullying and harassment the PSOW will 

consider both the perspectiveof the alleged victim, and whether the member 

                                                           
4 Members of Code  of Conduct 

Page 82



9 
 

intended their actions to be bullying. He will also consider whether the 

individual was reasonably entitled to believe they were being bullied. 

Bullying is often carried out face to face, but increasingly, it can be carried out 

in print or using electronic media. The standards of behaviour expected are 

the same, whether you are expressing yourself verbally or in writing. 

You need to ensure that your behaviour does not cross the line between being 

forceful and bullying. There can be no hard and fast rules governing every set of 

circumstances but the relative seniority of the officer will be a factor in some 

cases. As outlined under paragraph 4(b) of the Code very senior officers can be 

involved in robust discussion with members and be well placed to put their own 

point of view forcefully. The same is not true of more junior officers and 

members need to be aware of this. This is not to say that I condone the bullying 

of senior officers, only that thegreater the power difference between the officer 

and the member the greater the likelihood thatthe officer will consider 

behaviour to constitute bullying. 

Recently, the High Court found that there is a public interest in protecting 

public confidence in unelected public servants which is to be balanced against 

the interests of open discussion on matters of public concern. It also found that 

all members should equally respect the mutual bond of trust and confidence 

between themselves and the officers which is crucial to good administration. 

Local Authorities have appropriate channels for expressing concern about the 

performance of an officer and it is important that you raise issues about poor 

performance in the correct way and proper forum. Raising such issues in the 

context of a meeting with others present, especially if they are from outside 

bodies or are members of the public, is not acceptable. Neither is it acceptable 

to do so in the media, in your own publications or using blogs, tweets, Facebook 

or other electronic means. If your criticism is a personal attack or of an 

Page 83



10 
 

offensive nature, you are likely to cross the line of what is acceptable 

behaviour.Consider your conduct from the other person’s perspective 

Compromising the impartiality of officers of the authority 

See Paragraph 4(d) 

You must not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of anyone 

who works for, or on  behalf of, your authority. You should not approach 

anyone who works for, or on behalf of, theAuthority 

with a view to pressurising them to carry out their duties in a biased or partisan 

way. They must be neutral and should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a 

way that would undermine their neutrality. 

For example, you should not get officers to help you prepare party political 

material, or to help you with matters relating to your private business. You 

should not provide or offer any incentive or reward in return for acting in a 

particular way or reaching a particular decision or threaten someone if they are 

not minded to act in a particular way. As well as avoiding pressurising officers 

in person, you need to avoid doing so in writing, using electronic media or in 

the press. 

Although you can robustly question officers in order to understand, for 

example, their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of 

a report that they have written, you must not try and force them to act 

differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so 

would prejudice their professional integrity.If a member develops a close 

personal relationship with an officer, this becomes a personal and possibly a 

prejudicial interest under the Code. I would encourage you to adhere to any 

protocol developed by your authority that deals with relationships between 

members and officers. 

Page 84



11 
 

Example 

The son and daughter-in-law of a member of a county borough council were 

neighbours of a family, who were tenants of the Council. Complaints had been 

made about the family’s conduct. The member contacted officers of the Council 

regarding the family’s occupancy of the council property and its impact on his 

son’s family on a number of occasions, sometimes outside office hours. The 

calls were made in his role as elected member and he had direct access to 

officials because he was a member. 

He received a warning from the Deputy Monitoring Officer as to his conduct, 

which emphasised the powerful position elected members occupy when dealing 

with members of staff. Despite this he continued to contact officers about the 

matter including requesting an officer to visit his  family “there and then” and 

accusing an officer of “tipping off” the family being complained about that 

noise monitoring equipment was being installed. 

The Adjudication Panel for Wales found that the conduct of the member was a 

persistent course of conduct over a period of 6 months intended to bring undue 

pressure upon council officers. It found that by his actions he had sought to 

compromise the impartiality of officers of the Council. It also found that the 

member had failed to show respect and consideration for others and that his 

actions amounted toharassment and he had used his position improperly to 

promote the interests of his own family. Given the accumulative nature of his 

dealings with officers and his making a false allegation that an officer had 

“tipped off” the family he had also brought the office of member into disrepute. 

The member was suspended from office for 12 months 

 

2 Change to  Members’ Code of  of Conduct:- 

Page 85



12 
 

2.1.1The Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (Wales) (Amendment) 

Order 20165 

 

2.1.2 The Local Government (Standards Committees, Investigations, 

Dispensations and Referral)(Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2016 

 

2.2 The background to this  is that on 30th November 2015, the Welsh 

Government issued a consultation on two draft statutory instruments 

(under Part III of the Local Government Act 2000), intended to give 

effect to the policy proposals set out in the 2012 White Paper and 

consequential upon the legislative changes introduced by the 2013 Act 

and related matters.  I responded on behalf of the Authority. 

 

 The proposals were largely technical, in that substantive changes to 

the law had already been made by the 2013 Act, and the proposals 

were mostly consequential changes to subordinate legislation and the 

Model Code of Conduct to make them compatible with the primary 

legislation 

 

 On 27th January 2016 the Minister for Public Services of the 

Welsh Government signed the Local Authorities (Model Code of 

Conduct) (Wales) (Amendment) Order 2016 (“ the Amendment 

Order”) that amends the  Model  Members’ Code of Conduct. The 

Two new statutory instruments have now been made, both of which 

came into force on 1st April 2016. 

         1 The Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (Wales) 

(Amendment) Order 2016  

2 Local Government (Standards Committees, Investigations, 

Dispensations and Referral) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 

2016 

                                                           
5 In force since 1st April 2016 

Page 86



13 
 

 

3  The key changes introduced are set out below. 

 

2.3.1 The Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (Wales 

)(Amendment) Order 2016 

 This Order amends the Model Code of Conduct for Members as 

follows:  

 

a) Consequential amendments are made to reflect the transfer of 

responsibility for the maintenance of community councils’ registers of 

interests from the Monitoring Officer to the ‘proper officer’ of each 

community council, which was introduced by the 2013 Act with effect 

from 1st May 2015.  This does not affect National Park Authorities. 

b) The requirements for registering interests are clarified, to require 

that any interest disclosed for the first time must be entered in the 

Members’ register of interests.  

c) The obligation on a Member to report a potential breach of the 

Code of Conduct  by another member to the Public Service 

Ombudsman  for Wales under paragraph 6(1)(c) is removed. The 

obligation on a Member will remain to report a potential breach of the 

Members’ Code of Conduct of another member to the Authority’s 

Monitoring Officer.  

d) The personal interests provision regarding perceived conflict 

between a Member’s ward role and decisions taken on behalf of the 

Authority (paragraph 10(2)(b) of the Code) is removed. This is to 

overcome unintended difficulties in relation to Members’ participation 

in business relating to their ward. Members are, however, reminded 

that when participating in decisions relating to their ward, they must 

be mindful of the general obligation to act objectively and in the wider 

public interest (pursuant to paragraph 8 of the Code). Members will 

recall that this paragraph has caused difficulties in the past and the 

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales in his latest guidance on the 

Code has commented that: 

 “this paragraph has given rise to great interpretative difficulties. The 

crux of the problem is that a strict interpretation of the paragraph, as 

worded, could well preclude members from participating in any 

Page 87



14 
 

decision affecting their ward whereas the underlying policy intention 

had been to limit the scope of this provision to decisions made by 

individual councillors in the exercise of executive functions. I do not 

believe that it would be in the public interest, or in the interests of 

local democracy, to adopt a literal interpretation as a matter of course. 

Therefore as a general rule, in exercising my discretion, the decision 

as to whether to investigate will be based on the assumption that the 

paragraph is actually directed at individual members making decisions 

in the exercise of executive functions and decisions such as those 

made at planning or licensing committees.”. 

 

 The Authority is required to consider the amendments to the Model 

Code and adopt the revised Model Code of Conduct within 6 months 

from the date on which the Amendment Order is made. In accordance 

with section 51 of the Local Government Act 2000 as “The 

Amendment Order” was made on 27th January 2016, which means a 

revised Code must be adopted by 26th July 2016.  However, it is 

suggested that Authorities should adopt a revised Code no later than 

their forthcoming annual meetings.  

 

2.3.2 The Local Government (Standards Committees, 

Investigations, Dispensations and Referral) (Wales) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2016 

 

 This Order amends 3 statutory instruments (the Standards 

Committee Regulations 2001, the Functions of Monitoring Officers 

and Standards Committees Regulations 2001, and the Grant of 

Dispensations Regulations 2001), as follows: 

a) A number of consequential amendments are made to include 

reference to joint standards committees, introduced by the 2013 Act. 

b) The current maximum term of office for local authority Members of 

a standards committee (4 years) is removed, to reflect the 

postponement of the 2016 local government elections 

c) Provision is made to enable standards committees to delay 

publication of agendas and information related to consideration of 

misconduct investigations until the misconduct proceedings are 

concluded. It is suggested, however, that misconduct hearings should 

Page 88



15 
 

generally be held in public, unless there are particular reasons why 

some or all of the proceedings should be held in private. 

d) Provision is made to allow referral of misconduct matters to the 

standards committee of another authority, in order to overcome any 

potential conflict of interest which a standards committee may have. 

e) The period of suspension imposed by a standards committee is 

limited to the remainder of a Members’ term of office if this is less 

than 6 months. This clarification is in line with comparable powers of 

the Adjudication Panel. 

f)  A new requirement is introduced for a Member to seek permission 

from the President or nominated member of the Adjudication Panel 

for Wales in order to appeal against the determination of a standards 

committee. This is intended to remove frivolous or unmeritorious 

appeals.  

g) Provision is made to allow referral of a dispensation application to 

the standards committee of another authority, for example, where 

there is a potential conflict of interest or to expedite an urgent 

application. 

h)  A new general dispensation category is introduced to enable a 

standards committee to grant a dispensation, allowing a Member with 

an otherwise prejudicial interest to participate in a matter, if it 

considers it appropriate in all the circumstances. A dispensation 

granted under this  category which has ongoing effect  its subject to 

annual review. 

 

 

 

 

3 Extension of the powers of the  Public Service Ombudsman for Wales  

the Welsh government are actively looking into extending the powers of the 

Public Service ombudsman for Wales. At the moment this is progressing 

through a consultation exercise and as we speak the position is that the 

Welsh government is considering the response is that it has received an its 

Page 89



16 
 

consultation before issuing a further consultation. In essence it is proposed 

that the PS W will be able to undertake his own investigations on matters 

that come to his attention whether or not the formal or informal complaint 

has actually been received by him. He is seeking this power as it will 

enable him to step in earlier than has been the case, when issues of 

maladministration in relation to particularly health issues and the private 

health care sector are drawn to his attention. Its impact on the national Park 

authorities and the way that they conduct their affairs is likely to be quite 

limited, as things  standard the moment it is important to be aware that this 

change is in the pipeline . 

 

 

4 The  Standards Committee Dispensation procedure as it affected by the  

changes in the The Local Government (Standards Committees, 

Investigations, Dispensations and Referral)(Wales)(Amendment) 

Regulations 2016 

 

These regulations that have been introduced a quite detailed and unintended to 

assist standards committees in dealing with dispensation applications from 

members. There is now a very much plainer general “catch up all rather catch 

all” ground that can be utilised which previously had been really utilised in it 

previous rather more limited form. Members who wish to consider applying for 

a dispensation do need to submit such an application at the earliest possible 

stage that they realise that they may need to apply for one so that a Standards 

Committee can be properly called to deal with the application. In this context it 

is essential that members also pay regard to the weekly planning lists that they 

receive. I know that my in Information To technology colleagues have devised a 

Page 90



17 
 

system whereby members can link matters in which they think they may have 

particular interest so they are flagged up for them I suggest that the members do 

look to utilise this as soon as possible. Some members have unfortunately left 

things rather late and have  had to try to rely upon the Public speaking scheme. 

This is not always entirely satisfactory as they cannot remain in the room with 

the eight in question is being debated, once they have spoken. In contrast if they 

receive a dispensation they may well be able to both participate in the debate 

and vote and of course each dispensation decision is decided by the Standards 

committee on its own merits 

5 Standing orders- 

Each authority is governed by its own Standing Orders. The orders 

themselves can vary from authority to authority and one should never 

assume that just because one Authorities Standing orders permitting course 

of action exactly the same will follow in the another Authority. Having 

flagged that particular warning up I simply want to do with some general 

issues which are:- 

5.1 Behaviour in Committee 

 

“17. DISORDERLY CONDUCT – MEMBERS BBNPA 

 

17.1  If during any meeting of the Authority the Chairman forms the 

opinion and notifies the meeting that any Member is misconducting himself or 

herself by persistently disregarding the ruling of the Chairman, or by behaving 

irregularly, improperly or offensively, or by wilfully obstructing the business of 

the Authority, the Chairman or any other Member may move "That the Member 

Page 91



18 
 

named be not further heard", and the motion if seconded shall be put and 

determined without discussion. 

 

17.2 If the Member named continues the misconduct after a motion 

under the foregoing paragraph has been carried the Chairman shall: 

 EITHER move "That the Member named do leave the meeting" 

(The motion being put and determined without seconding or debate) 

 OR adjourn the meeting of the Authority for such period as in the 

opinion of the Chairman is expedient. 

 

17.3 In the event of a general disturbance which, in the opinion of 

the Chairman renders the due and orderly dispatch of business impossible, 

the Chairman may, without the question being put, adjourn the meeting of 

the Authority for such period as the Chairman may consider expedient. 

 

5.2         Remembering that jokes  get reported  in the Press!!!DON’T SEEM 

SO FUNNY –POTENTIAL LIBEL ETC. 

 

5.3      Lack of respect  to the applicants-“Appalling plANS!! 

Remeber you are tlaking of someones home amd a professional 

architect’s drawings etcbe careful with highly subjective opinions  

 

 

 

 

Page 92



19 
 

6    Voting  

 

 I have added this because I have noticed from time to time particularly in 

lengthy meetings sometimes some members appear to be less than familiar 

with this procedure. It may be very basic and something which they are 

very familiar we are all familiar with the phrase “familiarity breeds 

contempt” 

Standing order  15. VOTING 

 

15.1 Subject to Standing Order 8 every question shall be determined by a show 

of hands. 

 

15.2 On the Chairman having put the question no further discussion on it shall 

take place. The question having been put by the Chairman and voting having 

commenced no Member shall speak, nor any question be asked. 

 

15.3    In the case of an equal division of votes, the Chairman shall have 

the casting vote in addition to any vote. 

 

15.4  If a Member so asks a record shall be kept in the minutes of how 

the Member voted or abstained. 

 

15.5  On the requisition of any five Members rising in their places, the 

voting on any question shall be recorded in the minutes to show how each 

Page 93



20 
 

Member present and voting gave his/her vote or remained neutral as the case 

may be. 

 

 

 

7  How PSOW investigates 

 

Note From the Monitoring Officer 

 

The Public Service Ombudsman for Wales Office has created two new 

factsheets written for Members who are subject to a Code of Conduct 

investigation, which are intended to give some guidance as to the processes 

followed during an investigation and formal interview. 

 

The new factsheets can be found at the links below: 

http://www.ombudsman-

wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/Factsheets_en/Factsheet%20for%20Local%20Auth

ority%20Members%20%20What%20we%20do%20when%20we%20get%20a

%20complaint%20about%20your%20conduct%20%20Version%2010%20July

%202015.ashx   

 

Page 94

http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/Factsheets_en/Factsheet%20for%20Local%20Authority%20Members%20%20What%20we%20do%20when%20we%20get%20a%20complaint%20about%20your%20conduct%20%20Version%2010%20July%202015.ashx
http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/Factsheets_en/Factsheet%20for%20Local%20Authority%20Members%20%20What%20we%20do%20when%20we%20get%20a%20complaint%20about%20your%20conduct%20%20Version%2010%20July%202015.ashx
http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/Factsheets_en/Factsheet%20for%20Local%20Authority%20Members%20%20What%20we%20do%20when%20we%20get%20a%20complaint%20about%20your%20conduct%20%20Version%2010%20July%202015.ashx
http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/Factsheets_en/Factsheet%20for%20Local%20Authority%20Members%20%20What%20we%20do%20when%20we%20get%20a%20complaint%20about%20your%20conduct%20%20Version%2010%20July%202015.ashx
http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/Factsheets_en/Factsheet%20for%20Local%20Authority%20Members%20%20What%20we%20do%20when%20we%20get%20a%20complaint%20about%20your%20conduct%20%20Version%2010%20July%202015.ashx


21 
 

http://www.ombudsman-

wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/Factsheets_en/Code%20of%20Conduct%20compl

aints% 

20%20Factsheet%20for%20member%20interviewees%20%20Version%2010

%20July%202015.ashx   

 

I suggest that each member save theses links  in a safe place  for easy reference 

in the event of  a potential future investigation occurring,after they have read 

them. I think it is better to be prepared ,just in case. 

 

5.1. How complaints regarding the code of conduct are received 

• Any person may present a complaint to me - in writing or using the online 

complaint form available on my website (www. ombudsman-wales.org.uk).  

Although a lot of the complaints received come from members of the public, I 

also receive a number of complaints from elected members against members 

of the same authority. Sometimes I receive complaints about a member from 

monitoring officers or officers from the authority itself. My guidance on the 

Code is available on my website. There are two versions available, one 

specifically for County Council members and another for Community or Town 

Councils. 

• Most local authorities across Wales have implemented local resolution 

procedures to deal with low level complaints from members against members. 

Typically these complaints are about failures to show respect and 

consideration or the duty not to make vexatious, malicious or frivolous 

complaints against each other. These arrangements are proving to be effective 

at resolving many of these types of complaints. Whilst a member may still 

Page 95

http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/Factsheets_en/Code%20of%20Conduct%20complaints%25
http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/Factsheets_en/Code%20of%20Conduct%20complaints%25
http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/Factsheets_en/Code%20of%20Conduct%20complaints%25


22 
 

complain to me directly, if the complaint is one which I consider should be 

resolved by local resolution I will refer it back to the Monitoring Officer for 

consideration. I have to ensure effective use of my office’s resources and that 

any investigation is proportionate and required in the wider public interest. 

• I take a dim view of vexatious and tit for tat style complaints which are 

not founded in fact or are motivated by malice or are entirely frivolous. If I see 

evidence of any such behaviour I will take a hard line and investigate any 

member making such a complaint because if it is proven it is a breach of the 

Code. 

5.2. How I decide to investigate complaints 

When deciding whether or not to investigate a complaint I use a two-stage test: 

(a) At the first stage, I will aim to establish whether there is direct evidence 

that a breach actually took place. 

(b) If that evidential test is met, at the second stage, I will consider whether an 

investigation or a referral to a standards committee or the Adjudication Panel 

for Wales is required in the public interest.   

• To assess whether an investigation or referral is in the public interest I 

will consider factors such as the seriousness of the breach, whether the 

member deliberately sought personal gain for themselves or another at public 

expense, misused a position of trust, whether the breach was motivated by any 

form of discrimination or whether an investigation or referral is required to 

maintain public confidence in elected members in Wales.  The factors are not 

exhaustive and the weight to be attached will vary according to the facts and 

merits of each case I consider. 

Page 96



23 
 

• I have a wide discretion as to whether to begin or continue with an 

investigation and I will ensure that my resources are devoted to the 

investigation of serious breaches of the Code.  

 

In 2014/15 a large percentage of the complaints received by my office were 

about equality and respect  

• In the context of complaints for failing to show respect and consideration 

towards members of the public, although it is recognised that some members 

of the public can make unreasonable demands on members’ time, they should 

always treat members of the public in a courteous and considerate way when 

communicating in person or by electronic means.  Social Media is a useful tool 

for members but there is a need to balance the desire to make comments about 

council business or share views on matters with the obligations under the 

Code. 

• In addition, when dealing with officers of an authority, while members 

are entitled to question policy or scrutinise performance, it is necessary to 

ensure that the behaviour doesn’t cross the line between being forceful and 

bullying. 

 

 

 

Duration  

2 hours. 

 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Applications for Dispensation to Speak
	Cllr David Meredith - Schools
	Cllr Geraint Hopkins - Schools and Cerrigochion Road
	Cllr Evan Morgan - Schools
	Cllr Phil Pritchard page 1 Schools and Cerrigochion Road
	Cllr Phil Pritchard page 2 Schools and Cerrigochion Road
	Cllr Gwilym Williams Schools
	Cllr Paul Ashton - Cerrigochion Road
	Cllr David Meredith - Cerrigochion Road
	Evan Morgan - Cerrigochion Road

	5 Changes to the Members Code of Conduct
	6 Changes to the Local Government (Standards Committees, Investigations, Dispensations and Referral) (Wales )(Amendment) Regulations 2016
	Monitoring Officer training notes


